No. 8, Pentref, Leighton, Welshpool, NGR SJ24791 06061, NPRN410481.
Numbers 8, and 8A, Pentref are a pair of 18/19th century, stone-built, 2-storey cottages, which retain details of a former circa 1600, box-framed house, probably of 2-units. The houses were further extended in the late 20th century. Internally no.8 (west-end) retains a very fine cross-beam ceiling with chamfered joists. It retains part of 3-tier, square panel, box framed walling to the north wall, and has a collar and tie-beam roof-truss with mortices for wind-braces. It is built lying down the slope, and intriguingly across the bank of Offas Dyke. By the late 19th century it was part of the Leighton Estate.

Description

The ca 1600 house was converted into two properties in the 18th century when the roof was raised and a lean-to added on the north side of the west-end unit. The present south elevation entries are of this same period. However the stone work to each building differs, the east unit has coursed squared rubble with flat stone arches and 40 cm thick walls, while the west unit has random rubble and arched stone openings with 50 cm walls. It is likely that the timber-frame of the west unit survived until the 19th century, when it was replaced in stone by the Leighton Estate. It is probable that the east unit’s timber-frame was replaced separately in the 18th century.
Some timber-frame walling partly survives (see drawing) in the west unit, along its north wall, where it was protected by the 18th century lean-to. It consists of three-tier square frames, formerly with wattle infill. It has a girding beam at floor level with studs above and below dividing the space into 3 areas each side of an intermediate post, which extends to the wall-plate. The lower studs once had mid-rail piecesto form square panels. The intermediate post supports the girding-beam and ceiling-beam with cross-beam and chamferd joists.

One roof-truss survives (see drawing), centrally placed over the late 17thcentury back-to-back fireplace. It has a tie-beam and collar with struts, and down-braces from the tie to former principal-posts. There are two pairs of side-purlins, a mortice for wind-braces and it probably had a ridge-beam.
The inserted stone fireplace to the hall has been reduced, now with a cut-back timber lintel, and a new smaller 19th century fireplace with nearby bread oven. The adjacent lean-to has a 19th century fireplace fitted into the side of the hall fireplace, making the lean-to into a back-kitchen. The access to the lean-to is by a modern framed doorway through the west wall. A trimmer-beam in the hall ceiling by the west wall indicates the site of a former stair. A similar trimmer by the fireplace is modern.
In the c1600 house, the east unit acted as a parlour and pantry with access via a central lobby-entry in the south-wall, to the west-unit  hall. The two axial ceiling-beams here in the east-unit have later joists and indications of rearrangment, the south one with peg holes for a former partition. By the 19th century a boarded reduced size pantry provided access to a 19th century brick lean-to on the north, which may have been a dairy. A window in the north wall is now access from a 20th century addition.
The tithe map and apportion of 1847 for Worthen parish, showed this site as ‘house and orchard’, part of a small farm of 46 acres owned by ‘Roberts Thomas’, and occupied by ‘Morgan Robert’ at Trelyddan. Therefore it is uncertain who actually lived at this site.
Geoff Ward, visited, at the suggestion of the conservation officer,11/03/2010.
